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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS,

DALLAS DIVISION
TERESA WILLINS and §
JOI BROADNAX, on behalf of §
themselves and others similarly §
situated, g CIVIL ACTION NO.
Plaintiffs, §
§
V. §
§
CSA- CREDIT SOLUTIONS  §  COLLECTIVEACTION
OF AMERICA, INC,, §
§
Defendant. §
COMPLAINT

Plaintiffs, TERESA WILLINS and JOI BROADNAX, by and through
their counsel, for their Complaint against Defendant, CSA — CREDIT
SOLUTIONS OF AMERICA, INC., (collectively “CSA” or “Defendant”),
seek to recover for Defendant’s violations of the Fair Labor Standards Act of
1938 (FLSA), 29 U.S.C. §§ 201 et seq., and hereby states and alleges as
follows:

INTRODUCTION

1. This is a collective action brought pursuant to the Fair Labor

Standards Act of 1938, 29 U.S.C. §§ 201- 219 (hereinafter “FLSA”) to
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recover unpaid overtime compensation owed to Plaintiff Teresa Willins and
Plaintiff Joi Broadnax (hereinafter “Plaintiffs”) and all others similarly
situated who were formerly or are currently employed as debt consultants by
Defendant CSA.

2. CSA employs these employees in Dallas County, Texas.

3. Throughout the liability period, CSA has maintained offices in
Dallas Texas.

4. | CSA is a for-profit financial service company primarily
marketing and providing debt settlement plans to the public.

5. For at least three yeafs prior to filing of this complaint and
continuing (hereinafter “Liability Period”), CSA had a policy and practice of
not correctly compensating its debt consultants for work performed for the
benefit of CSA over and above forty (40) hours per week, to wit: virtually
all debt consultants received a $2,000 forgivable draw their first 90 days of
employment and a non-forgivable draw of $2,000 per month thereafter.
Debt consultants qualified debtors for debt settlement plans of Defendant by
verifying the debtor possessed at least $10,000 in debt. Next debt .
consultants analyzed each creditor comprising the $10,000 is owed at least

$600 and there are contracts in place between the creditor and CSA. The
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debt consultant sets up a CSA account for each creditor. Lastly, the debt
consultant verified the debtor’s bank accounts and assisted the debtor in
picking a payment plan. Once a plan was chosen the debt consultant, using
CSA guidelines, would set up a monthly draft on the debtor’s bank account
whereby CSA would obtain its fee and moneys to satisfy the debtor’s
creditors. Eighty-five percent (85%) of CSA’s fee is collected from debtors'
accounts within the first 90 days. Debt consultants received a fee from the
first monthly draft which was a percentage determined on the total volume
of draft’s occurring monthly attributable to that debt consultant.

6. Debt consultants were required to work a minimum of 12 hours
p}ér day, but were expected to work as many hours as necessary to reach
assigned sales goals. Debt consultants regularly worked 14 — 16 hours a day
and CSA provided debt consultants a room to nap and sleep when necessary
to reach company goals.

7. Debt consultants were not provided a rest or lunch break, but
instead, CSA served debt consultants “cup of noodles” for‘lunch SO they.
would not have‘ to leave their desk and could continuing selling the debt
settlement services.

8. Debt consultants worked six (6) days a week.
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9. As stated above, debt consultants do not receive overtime for
hours worked over 40 in any Wéek.

10. Effective May of 2009, Defendant CSA revised its debt
consultants’ compensation plan to include an overtime component.

JURISDICTION

11.  This Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to the Fair
Labor Standards Act of 1938, 29 U.S.C. § 216(b) and 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331,
1337.

12.  Venue is proper in this Court under 28 U.S.C. § 1391(b)(1)
where defendants may be deemed to reside because CSA maintains offices
in Dallas County within this District. |

PARTIES

Plaintiff Teresa Willins

13. Teresa Willins was, at all material times, a resident of Dallas
County, Texas, and worked for Defendant at its local offices located therein.

14.  Plaintiff Willins Was, at all material times, a covered, non-
exempt employee of CSA within the meaning of the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. §
203(3) and (g).

15. Plaintiff Willins is a debt consultant employed with CSA from
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January 2009 to present.

16. During the portions of the Liability Period, Plaintiff Willins
regularly worked in excess of forty (40) hours per week without receiving
the correct overtime compensation.

Plaintiff Joi Broadnax

17. Joi Broadnax was, at all material times, a resident of Dallas
County, Texas, and worked for Defendant at its local offices located therein.

18. Plainﬁff Broadnax was, at all material times, a covered, non-
exempt employee of CSA within the meaning of the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. §
203(3) and (g).

19. Plaintiff Broadnax is a debt consultant employed with CSA
from December 2008 to present.

20. During the portions of the Liability Period, Plaintiff Willins
regularly worked in excess of forty (40) hours per week, without receiving
the correct overtime compensation.

Defendant CSA

21. CSA maintains an office within the jurisdiction of this Court.
22. CSA is subject to the requirements of the FLSA.

23. Defendant CSA is the employer of Plaintiff Willins, Plaintiff
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Broadnax, and other similarly situated debt consultants within the meaning
of the FLSA, 29 U.S.C. § 203(d).

24. Defendant is not a retail or service store/establishment as
defined under 29 C.F.R. 314-315.

25. Plaintiff does not sell goods or services as defined under 29
C.FR. 779.314.

26. At all times material hereto, Defendant was an “enterprise
engaged in commerce” within the meaning of 29 U.S.C. § 203 with annual
gross sales in excess of $500,000 within the meaning of the FLSA.

GENERAL FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

27.  Plaintiffs reassert paragraphs 1 thru 26 as if fully stated herein.

28. CSA does not compensate its debt consultants overtime for
hours worked over forty.

29. CSA’s revised compensation/bonus plan containing an overtime
component does not correctly calculate debt consultants' regular rate of pay
for purposes of calculating overtime; i.e. commissions paid on top of

consultants’ hourly rate are not included in their regular rate of pay.
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COUNT I
Violation of 29 U.S.C. § 207

30. As a result of the allegations contained in paragraphs 1 thr 29,
CSA willfully violated the provisions of the FLSA which requires overtime
compensation be paid to non-exempt employees for hours worked over 40 in
any workweek. 29 U.S.C. § 207.

31. Plaintiffs and all persons similarly situated have been deprived
overtime compensation in amounts to be determined at trial and they are
entitled to a recovery of such amounts in addition to liquidated damages and
attorney fees and case expenses. 29 U.S.C. 216(b).

COLLECTIVE ACTION ALLEGATIONS

32.  Plaintiffs bring the FLSA claim, as an “opt-in” collective action
pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b). In addition to the claims of the individually
named Plaintiffs, Plaintiffs brings this action as representatives of all
similarly situated former and current employees of the Defendant. The
potential class of “opt-in” employees can be defined as:

All current and former Debt Consultants paid under a

compensation system where they were not compensated for all

hours worked and related overtime at the rate of time and
one- half for all hours worked over forty (40).
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33. FLSA claims may be pursued by those who opt-in to this case,
pursuant to 29 U.S.C. § 216(b).

34. Plaintiffs, individually and on behalf of other similarly situated
employees, seek relief on a collective basis challenging, among other FLSA
violations, Defendant’s practice of failing to accurately record all hours
worked, practice of miscalculating the overﬁme rates in weeks where
bonuses were paid, and failing to pay employees overtime compensation.

35. The ﬁumber and identity of other plaintiffs yet to opt-in and
consent to be party ’plaintiffs may be determined from the records of
Defendant, and potential class members may easily and quickly be notified
of the pendency of this action.

36. Potential collective action members may be informed of the
pendency of this class action through direct mail and office poéting.
Plaintiffs believe 900 plus current and former debt consultants may have
been affected.

37. There are questions of fact and law common to the class that
predominates over any questions affecting only individual members. The
questions of law and fact common to the class arising from Defendant’s

actions include, without limitation, the following:
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a. Whether Plaintiffs were compensated for all hours worked,;
b. Whether Plaintiffs worked more than forty hours per week;

c. Whether Plaintiffs were compensated time and one half their
“regular rate” for all hours worked over forty in any and all
weeks;

d. Whether Defendant’s practices accurately account for the
time Plaintiffs actually are working;

e. Whether Defendants’ compensation policy and practice is
illegal; and,

f. Whether Defendant had a policy and practice of willfully

failing to record and compensate employees for overtime;
and

38. The questions set forth above predominate over an‘y questions
affecting only individual persons, and a collective action is superior with
respect to considerations of consistency, economy, efficiency, fairness and
equity, to other available methods for the fair and efficient adjudication of
the federal law claims.

39. The Collective Action Representatives’ claims are typical of
those of the similarly situated employees in that these employees have been
employed in the same or similar positions as the Collective Action
Representatives and were subject to the same or similar unlawful practices

as the Collective Action Representatives.
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40. A collective action is the appropriate method for the fair and
efficient adjudication of this controversy. Defendant has acted or refused to
act on grounds generally applicable to the similarly situated current and
former employees. The presentation of separate actions by individual
similarly situated current or former employees could create a risk of
inconsistent and varying adjudications, establish incompatible standards of
conduct for Defendant, and/or substantially impair or impede the ability of
Collective Action members to protect their interests.

41. The Collective Action Representatives are adequate
representatives of similarly situated current and former employees because
they are employees of the same entity and their interests do not conflict with
the interests of the other similarly situated current and former employees
they seek to represent. The interests of the members of the class of
employees will be fairly and adequately protected by the Collective Action
Representatives and their undersigned counsel, who have extensive
experience prosecuting complex collective action lawsuits. Furthermore,
employees are interchangeable as production needs dictate and as a result

they are all similar regardless of title or supervisor.

10
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42. Maintenance of this action as a collective action is a fair and
efficient method for the adjudication of this controversy. It would be
impracticable and undesirable for each member of the collective action who
suffered harm to bring a separate action. In addition, the maintenance of
separate actions would place a substantial and unnecessary burden on the
courts and could result in inconsistent adjudications, while a single
collective action can determine, with judicial economy, the rights of all
collective action members.

WHEREFORE, it is respectfully prayed that this Court grant to the
Plaintiffs the following relief:

a. At the earliest possible time, issue an Order allowing Notice or
issue such Court supervised Notice to all similarly situated current and
former Honda employees, as described above, of this action and their rights
to participate in this action. Such Notice shall ihform all similarly situated
current and qualified former employees of the pendency of this action, the
nature of this action, and of their right to “opt in” to this action if they did
not receive proper overtime for hours worked in excess of 40 in a week.

b. Issue an Order directing and requiring Defendant to pay

Plaintiffs and all other similarly situated employees damages in the form of

11
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reimbursement for unpaid premium overtime wages (past and future) for all
time spent in excess of 40 hours per week performing compensable work for
which they were not paid pursuant to the rate provided by the FLSA;

c. Issue an Order directing and requiring Defendant to pay
Plaintiffs and all other similarly situated employees liquidated damages
pursuant to the FLSA in an amount equal to, and in addition to the amount of
overtime wages owed to them;

d. Issue and Order directing Defendant to reimburse Plaintiffs and
other similarly situated employees for the costs and attorneys fees expended
in the course of litigating this action, pre-judgment and post-judgment
interest; |

e. Provide Plaintiffs with such other and further relief, as the
Court deems just and equitable.

DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

Plaintiffs hereby request trial by jury of all issues triable by jury under

Texas and Federal law.

12
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Dated: 6/3/09

— and-
Seeking admission pro hac vice:

Robert J. Camp, ASB: 1864076C
THE COCHRAN FIRM, P.C.
505 20" Street North, Suite 825
Birmingham, AL 35203

(205) 244-1115 — Phone

(205) 244-1171 — Facsimile

rcamp(@cochranfirm.com
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Respectfully submitted,

THE COCHRAN FIRM -
DALLAS, PLLC

/s/ Bryan Pope

BRYAN POPE, SBN: 00788213
3811 Turtle Creek Blvd

Turtle Creek Centre, Suite 1400
Dallas, TX 75219

(214) 651-4260 — Phone

(214) 651-4261 — Facsimile

bpope@cochranfirm.com

13
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT A
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CONSENT TO JOIN SUIT AS PARTY PLAINTIFF

O: CLERK OF THE COURT AND COUNSEL OF RECORD

]ﬁresa W&”ins - \S\'\ﬁd with states the following;

[Print Name]

1. I am over 18 years of age and competent to give the following consent in this
matter.

edd &
2. I am currently, or was formerly, employed by ( ,rcA‘.sr \\)d’l [

[Employer]

at the facility located in «Dallas T X . T worked at this

YCity/State]

location from ‘ lé\ (Dl ()q to /Prﬁe.n"'

[Date] [Date, or if still working write “present]

3. I understand that this suit is being brought to recover unpaid compensation and
overtime. I understand that the suit is brought pursuant to both federal law and
applicable state statutes, if any.

4. I believe I have not been paid for all compensable time which I have worked,
including overtime.

5. I hereby consent and agree to be a plaintiff in this lawsuit and to be bound by any
decision in this lawsuit or by any settlement of this case.

I understand that this suit may be brought as a collective action covering
employees of Defendant. If brought as a collective action under either federal or state

law, I consent to join as a plaintiff in such suit.

[ swear or affirm that the foregomg Statements are true to the best of my
knowledge.

DATED th 6 day of (/W\ GLL\ 12009

'e,reaav\( llino &\Edw' \L NA \-MAW% L&{mﬁ

[PRINT NAME] ~ [SIGN NAME]
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CONSENT TO JOIN SUIT AS PARTY PLAINTIFF |

TO: CLERK OF THE COURT AND COUNSEL OF RECORD

/ j / / | ﬁ f/dad/ﬂ 4}(’ states the following:

" [Print Name]

1. I'am over 18 years of age and competent to give the following consent in this
matter.

2. I am currently, or was formerly, employed by ﬁ /Zmé 5@/ i

; —_— . [Employer]
at the facility located in D)/ /)S , (25 . I'worked at this
, [City/State]

location from &d A to /a/éqf L

[Date] [Date, or if still working write “present]

3. I understand that this suit is being brought to recover unpaid compensation and
overtime. I understand that the suit is brought pursuant to both federal law and
applicable state statutes, if any.

4. I believe I have not been paid for all compensable time which I have worked,
including overtime.

5. I hereby consent and agree to be a plaintiff in this lawsuit and to be bound by any
decision in this lawsuit or by any settlement of this case.

I understand that this suit may be brought as a collective action covering
employees of Defendant. If brought as a collective action under either federal or state

law, I consent to join as a plaintiff in such suit.

I swear or affirm that the foregoing Statements are true to the best of my
knowledge.

DATED the 90 day of J@%{ , 2009
8/ S roagnof

[PRINT NAME] | [SIGN NAME]
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS,

DALLAS DIVISION
TERESA WILLINS and §
JOI BROADNAX, on behalf of §
themselves and others similarly §
situated, g CIVIL ACTION NO.
Plaintiffs, §
§
V. §
§
CSA - CREDIT SOLUTIONS s QEFTVELGN
OF AMERICA, INC.,, §
§
Defendant. §

PLAINTIFE’S CERTIFICATE OF INTERESTED PARTIES

Plaintiffs Teresa Willins and Joi Broadnax, on behalf of themselves and others
similarly situated, file this Certificate of Interested Parties. The following parties are

currently known by Plaintiffs to have a financial interest in the outcome of this litigation:

Plaintiffs: Teresa Willins and Joi Broadnax, on behalf of themselves
and others similarly situated.

Plaintiffs’ Attorneys: Bryan D. Pope
The Cochran Firm - Dallas, PLLC
3811 Turtle Creek Blvd., Suite 1400
Dallas, TX 75219
(214) 561.4260
(214) 561.4261 (Fax)

i
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Robert J. Camp. ASB: 1864076C
THE COCHRAN FIRM, P.C.
505 20" Street North, Suite 825
Birmingham, AL 35203

(205) 244-1115 — Phone

(205) 244-1171 — Facsimile

rcamp(@cochranfirm.com

Defendant: Credit Solutions of America, Inc.

Respectfully submitted,

THE COCHRAN FIRM -
DALLAS, PLLC

[s/ Bryan Pope

BRYAN POPE, SBN: 00788213
3811 Turtle Creek Blvd

Turtle Creek Centre, Suite 1400
Dallas, TX 75219

(214) 651-4260 — Phone

(214) 651-4261 — Facsimile

bpope@cochranfirm.com

— and—
Seeking admission pro hac vice:

Robert J. Camp, ASB:1864076C
THE COCHRAN FIRM, P.C.
505 20™ Street North, Suite 825
Birmingham, AL 35203

(205) 244-1115 — Phone

(205) 244-1171 — Facsimile

rcamp(@cochranfirm.com

Certificate of Interested Parties - Page 2




SIS 44 Rev. 1207) Case 3:09-cv-01025-M D@iwﬁ%Wﬂ%ﬁOQ Page 1 of 1 PagelD 19

The JS 44 civil cover sheet and the information contained herein neither replace nor supplement the filing and service of pleadings or other papers as required by law, except as provided
by local rules of court. This form, approved by the Judicial Conference of the United States in September 1974, is required for the use of the Clerk of Court for the purpose of initiating
the civil docket sheet. (SEE INSTRUCTIONS ON THE REVERSE OF THE FORM.)

I. (a) PLAINTIFFS

Teresa Willins and Joi Broadnax, on behalf of themselves and

other similarly situated.

(b) County of Residence of First Listed Plaintiff Dallas
(EXCEPT IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES)

DEFENDANTS

(c) Attorney’s (Firm Name, Address, and Telephone Number)

The Cochran Firm -- Dallas, PLLC., Bryan D, Pope, 3811 Turtle Creek Blvd.,
Suite 1400, Dallas, TX 75219; (214) 651.4260; Robert J. Camp, The Cochran
Firm, PC, 505 20th Street, Suite 825, Birmingham, AL 35203. (205).244.1115

Attorneys (If Known)

County of Residence of First Listed Defendant

CSA - Credit Solutions of America, Inc.

Dallas

(IN U.S. PLAINTIFF CASES ONLY)

NOTE: IN LAND CONDEMNATION CASES, USE THE LOCATION OF THE
LAND INVOLVED.

I1. BASIS OF JURISDICTION  (Place an “X” in One Box Only)

III. CITIZENSHIP OF PRINCIPAL PARTIES(PIace an “X” in One Box for Plaintiff

(For Diversity Cases Only) and One Box for Defendant)
01 U.S. Government x 3 Federal Question PTF DEF PTF  DEF
Plaintiff (U.S. Government Not a Party) Citizen of This State [ 3 1 Incorporated or Principal Place 04 0O4
of Business In This State

02 U.S. Government 0 4 Diversity Citizen of Another State a 2 {3 2 Incorporated and Principal Place Oos5 X5

Defendant (Indicate Citizenship of Parties in Item III) of BusigesAngiigy State
Citizen or Subject of a o 3 [J 3 Foreign Nation g6 0O6

Foreign Country

IV. NATURE OF SUIT

lace an “X” in One Box Ont

THER STATUTES

Other

(7 465 Other Immigration

'CONTRAC TORT: OREFEITURE/PENAT ANKRUPTC

3 110 Insurance PERSONAL INJURY PERSONAL INJURY [0 610 Agriculture 7 422 Appeal 28 USC 158
0 120 Marine O 310 Airplane {3 362 Personal Injury - 3 620 Other Food & Drug 0 423 Withdrawal
07 130 Miller Act 3 315 Airplane Product Med. Malpractice | 625 Drug Related Seizure 28 USC 157
0 140 Negotiable Instrument Liability 1 365 Personal Injury - of Property 21 USC 881
3 150 Recovery of Overpayment |(J 320 Assault, Libel & Product Liability O 630 Liquor Laws

& Enforcement of Judgment| Slander {3 368 Asbestos Personal 17 640 R.R. & Truck {7 820 Copyrights
[ 151 Medicare Act {J 330 Federal Employers’ Injury Product 3 650 Airline Regs. 7 830 Patent
(7 152 Recovery of Defaulted Liability Liability 0 660 Occupational {7 840 Trademark

Student Loans 1 340 Marine PERSONAL PROPERTY Safety/Health

(Excl. Veterans) O 345 Marine Product O 370 Other Fraud 0 690 Other
3 153 Recovery of Overpayment Liability 3 371 Truth in Lending i BOR SOCIALSECURITY.

of Veteran’s Benefits 0 350 Motor Vehicle O 380 Other Personal x 710 Fair Labor Standards 0 861 HIA (1395f)
[J 160 Stockholders® Suits {3 355 Motor Vehicle Property Damage Act 1 862 Black Lung (923)

190 Other Contract Product Liability 3 385 Property Damage 3 720 Labor/Mgmt. Relations {3 863 DIWC/DIWW (405(g))
{3 195 Contract Product Liability |3 360 Other Personal Product Liability 7 730 Labor/Mgmt.Reporting |0 864 SSID Title XVI
1 196 Franchise Injury & Disclosure Act J 865 RSI (405(g))
G REAL'PROPERT IVILRIGHTS : {PRISONER/PETITIONS | (3 740 Railway Labor Act U FEDERAL TAXISUITS
(3 210 Land Condemnation {1 441 Voting 510 Motions to Vacate  |(J 790 Other Labor Litigation 0 870 Taxes (U.S. Plaintiff
[J 220 Foreclosure 0 442 Employment Sentence O 791 Empl. Ret. Inc. or Defendant)
7 230 Rent Lease & Ejectment |3 443 Housing/ Habeas Corpus: Security Act O 871 IRS~-Third Party
{3 240 Torts to Land Accommodations (3 530 General | 26 USC 7609
(3 245 Tort Product Liability {1 444 Welfare (1 535 Death Penalty IMMIGRATION::
{7 290 All Other Real Property |3 445 Amer. w/Disabilities - |3 540 Mandamus & Other |CJ 462 Naturalization Application
Employment 0 550 Civil Rights {3 463 Habeas Corpus -
J 446 Amer. w/Disabilities - [(3 555 Prison Condition Alien Detainee
]

440 Other Civil Rights

Actions

QO ooaooo O oooa a&iuncm

]

400 State Reapportionment
410 Antitrust
430 Banks and Banking
450 Commerce
460 Deportation
470 Racketeer Influenced and
Corrupt Organizations
480 Consumer Credit
490 Cable/Sat TV
810 Selective Service
850 Securities/Commodities/
Exchange
875 Customer Challenge
12 USC 3410
890 Other Statutory Actions
891 Agricultural Acts
892 Economic Stabilization Act
893 Environmental Matters
894 Energy Allocation Act
895 Freedom of Information
Act
900Appeal of Fee Determination
Under Equal Access
to Justice
950 Constitutionality of
State Statutes

V. ORIGIN (Place an “X” in One Box Only) . JAP eai'rto District
X 1 Original (3 2 Removed from {1 3 Remanded from [J 4 Reinstatedor [ 5 le;?tlls ;ré‘;‘gtr?gm 1 6 Multidistrict (1 7 Muag?str:x)trg
Proceeding State Court Appellate Court Reopened (spe clifv) Litigation Tu d%m ot

VI. CAUSE OF ACTION

Cite the U.S. Civil Statute under which you are filing (Do not cite jurisdictional statutes unless diversity):
29 USC § 216(b) and 28 USC §§ 1331, 1337.

Brief description of cause:
Unpaid overtime compensation to Plaintiffs

VII. REQUESTED IN

X CHECKIF THIS IS A CLASS ACTION

DEMAND §

CHECK YES only if demanded in complaint:

COMPLAINT: UNDERF.R.CP. 23 JURY DEMAND: X Yes I No
VIII. RELATED CASE(S) See' .
IF ANY (See instructions): ;g DOCKET NUMBER
DATE SIGNATURE OF ATTORNEY OF RECORD
06/03/09 /sl BRYAN POPE
FOR OFFICE USE ONLY
RECEIPT # AMOUNT APPLYING IFP JUDGE MAG. JUDGE

—




